
MINUTES 
CITY OF NORCO 

CITY COUNCIL/NORCO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
REGULAR MEETING 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2820 CLARK AVENUE 
AUGUST 4, 2010 

Agenda Items 1.A. & 3.A. 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Pro Tem Hanna called the meeting to 

order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:  Mayor Malcolm Miller, Absent 
   Mayor Pro Tem Berwin Hanna, Present 
   Council Member Kathy Azevedo, Present 
   Council Member Kevin Bash, Present 

  Council Member Harvey C. Sullivan, Present  
 

 Staff Present: Carlson, Groves, Jacobs, King, 
Milano, Okoro, Oulman and Thompson 

 
   City Attorney Harper – Present 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Council Member Azevedo 

 
INVOCATION:    Grace Fellowship Church 
        Pastor Vernie Fletcher 

 
REGULAR COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (CRA) AGENDA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. CRA CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS: 
 
M/S Sullivan/Bash to approve the CRA Consent Calendar items.  The motion was 
carried by the following roll call vote:   
 
AYES: AZEVEDO, BASH, HANNA, SULLIVAN 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: MILLER 
ABSTAIN: NONE 
 
 A. CRA Minutes: 
  Regular Meeting of July 21, 2010 
  Recommended Action:  Approve the CRA Minutes (City Clerk) 
 
 B. Request for the Norco Redevelopment Agency to be a “Silver” Sponsor of 

the Horsetown USA Hall of Fame. Recommended Action:  Approve the 
request to become a “Silver” Sponsor in the amount of $1,500 for the 
Horsetown USA Hall of Fame. (Executive Director)  



City Council/CRA Minutes 
Page 2  
August 4, 2010 
 
 
2. CRA PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
 A. Approval of a Purchase and Sale Agreement by and between Daniel 

Schlossberg and the Norco Redevelopment Agency for Agency-Owned 
Property Located at 1468 Second Street 

 
As part of the Second Street Widening Project, the Norco Redevelopment 
Agency purchased all of the property at 1468 Second Street and then 
demolished the substandard structures on that property.  The adjacent 
property owner, Daniel Schlossberg, located at 1885 Valley View Avenue, 
has offered to purchase the remaining property after the dedication of the 
necessary right-of-way and merge this property with his to create one 
parcel. 

 
Recommended Action: Adopt CRA Resolution No. 2010-___, 
authorizing, as required by Health and Safety Code §33433, the 
approval of the sale of Agency-owned property at 1468 Second 
Street acquired for the widening of Second Street in the amount of 
$60,000. (City Engineer) 

 
City Engineer Milano presented the CRA public hearing item noting the terms and 
conditions of the agreement.   
 
Vice Chairman Hanna OPENED the public hearing, indicating that proper 
notification had been made and asked for the appearance of those wishing to 
speak. With no one wishing to speak, Vice Chairman Hanna CLOSED the public 
hearing.  
 
M/S Bash/Sullivan to adopt CRA Resolution No. 2010-16, authorizing, as required 
by Health and Safety Code §33433, the approval of the sale of Agency-owned 
property at 1468 Second Street acquired for the widening of Second Street in the 
amount of $60,000.  The motion was carried by the following roll call vote:   
 
AYES: AZEVEDO, BASH, HANNA, SULLIVAN 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: MILLER 
ABSTAIN: NONE 
 
OTHER CRA MATTERS:  No other CRA matters. 

 
ADJOURNMENT OF CRA: 7:13 p.m. 
 



City Council/CRA Minutes 
Page 3  
August 4, 2010 
 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
3. CITY COUNCIL CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS:  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hanna pulled Item 3.H. as a speaker card was submitted requesting 
discussion on this item 
 
M/S Sullivan/Bash to approve the items as recommended on the amended City 
Council Consent Calendar.  The motion was carried by the following roll call vote:   
 
AYES: AZEVEDO, BASH, HANNA, SULLIVAN 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: MILLER 
ABSTAIN: NONE 
 

A. City Council Minutes:  
Special Joint Meeting and Regular Meeting of July 21, 2010 

  Recommended Action:  Approve the City Council Minutes (City Clerk) 
 

B. Procedural Step to Approve Ordinance after Reading of Title Only. 
Recommended Action: Approval (City Clerk) 

 
C. Designation of Voting Delegates for the 2010 League of California Cities 

Annual Conference.  Recommended Action:  That the City Council 
designate Mayor Pro Tem Hanna as Norco’s voting delegate and 
designate Council Member Azevedo as Norco’s alternate.  (City Clerk) 

 
D. Approval of the Implementation Agreement for the Santa Ana Regional 

Municipal NPDES Permit – 2010.  Recommended Action:  Approve the 
NPDES Urban Runoff Discharge Implementation Agreement Santa 
Ana Region. (Public Works Director) 

 
E. Approval of a One-Year Maintenance Services Contract Extension with 

Orange County Striping Service, Inc. to Provide Street Striping and 
Pavement Marking Services. Recommended Action:  Approve the one-
year Maintenance Services Contract extension with Orange County 
Striping Service, Inc. through June 30, 2011. (Public Works Director) 

  
F. Approval of a Two-Year Maintenance Services Contract Extension with 

Republic ITS, to Provide Traffic Signal Maintenance Services. 
Recommended Action:  Approve the two-year extension of the Traffic 
Signal Maintenance Services Agreement with Republic ITS, through 
June 30, 2012. (Public Works Director) 

 
 G. Norco Firefighters Association’s (NFA) Annual pancake Breakfast.  

Recommended Action:  That the City Council permit the NFA to 
continue to use Station 22 to host a community pancake breakfast 
on an annual basis.  (City Manager) 



City Council/CRA Minutes 
Page 4  
August 4, 2010 
 

 
H. Amendment to the Horsetown USA Sign Program.  Recommended 

Action:  Approve the amendment to the Horsetown USA Sign 
Program to include all signs, where appropriate, either developed 
and/or constructed by the City, and include the Horsetown USA Logo 
and the City Seal. City Manger)  PULLED FOR DISCUSSION 

 
4. ITEMS PULLED FROM CITY COUNCIL CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

3.H. Amendment to the Horsetown USA Sign Program.  Recommended 
Action:  Approve the amendment to the Horsetown USA Sign 
Program to include all signs, where appropriate, either developed 
and/or constructed by the City, and include the Horsetown USA Logo 
and the City Seal. City Manger)  

 
City Manager Groves stated that at its meeting held on July 21, 2010, the City Council 
recommended that a policy be placed on a future agenda regarding signs throughout 
the City.  She noted that the previously approved Horsetown USA Sign Program, 
approved in 2007, includes the placement of the Horsetown USA Logo and the City 
Seal and staff is recommending that the Horsetown USA Sign Program be extended to 
include all signs, where appropriate, either developed and/or constructed by the City, 
and include the Horsetown USA Logo and the City Seal.  

 
Council Member Azevedo recommended that the Council consider changing one 
sentence in the recommendation stating “……….and include the Horsetown USA Logo 
and/or the City Seal, within the discretion of the City.”   
 
Margaret Harris.  Ms. Harris stated that the general understanding is that the signs 
serve two purposes, for identification and direction.  She noted that the “Norco Ridge 
Ranch Estates” signs do both and the current sign for Valley Drive is covered by a tree 
and is hard to view.  Ms. Harris questioned what the process is for reconstructing 
existing signage.  She also wanted to know what the source of funding is for 
reconstructing the signs.  City Attorney Harper stated that the City discretion only 
applies to one/both logo(s) and not the selection process. 
 
Pat Overstreet.  Ms. Overstreet stated that the Council has gone out of its way to keep 
the City as one unit.  She added that the whole idea is to keep all of the areas as one 
City.   
 
Lance Gregory.  Mr. Gregory stated that he was pleased that the sign in the Norco 
Ridge Ranch development was repaired.  He further asked that the City understand the 
economic times and exercise common sense when implementing the signs. 
 
Jodi Filkens Webber.  Ms. Webber questioned the word “developed” as stated in the 
staff report.  She also questioned the process for making improvements to signs in LMD 
No. 4 and where the funding came from to pay for the existing signs.  She commented 
on noticing requirements and Government Codes related to any changes to 
improvements and/or increased assessments.  
 



City Council/CRA Minutes 
Page 5  
August 4, 2010 
 
John Box.  Mr. Box stated that he is concerned that this policy is very vague and 
ambiguous.  He further recommended that City Attorney Harper take a look at this and 
improve on it to satisfy the community.  Mr. Box noted that the entry sign to Valley and 
Norco Hills sign is the reference of most speakers and further commented on how the 
new sign was discussed in private.   
 
Emmet McKune.  Mr. McKune stated that certain things make sense and all of this is 
ridiculous.  He noted that the sign defining Valley is behind a huge tree and further 
asked why the City is spending time doing this when there is a budget problem.  Mr. 
McKune stated that the City is the custodian of the LMD fees and has the fiduciary 
responsibility to spend them appropriately.   
 
Council Member Bash stated that the signs in the Norco hills were put into effect by 
Council resolution.  He added that the Specific Plan did a good job in defining the signs, 
but was not followed.  Council Member Bash stated that he would prefer to see the 
words Norco and Horsetown USA, as we are trying to create an economic base for the 
City and supports the proposal. 
 
Council Member Azevedo commented on the public process that occurred prior to the 
adoption of the Horsetown USA brand and logo.  She stated that any time we have the 
opportunity to share the uniqueness of the community, we need to.  Council Member 
Azevedo noted that it is hard to fathom why anyone would not want the logo(s) on signs.   
 
Council Member Sullivan commented on the appropriate locations for entryway and 
monument signs and noted that the Norco Horsetown USA Logo was never intended to 
replace the City Seal.  He further noted that the Horsetown USA Logo should not be 
placed on signs without the City Seal.  Council Member Sullivan stated that City 
Attorney Harper should review the Specific Plan and LMD No. 4 before signs are 
changed.  He further noted that he has no problem with leaving the sign program the 
way it is.   
 
City Attorney Harper stated that the only thing before the Council tonight is to approve 
the amendment to the Horsetown USA Sign Program, and only signs developed or 
constructed within the public right-of-way.  He further stated, regarding the questions if 
LMD No. 4 was paying for the changes to the signs, it was not suggested that they pay 
for any changes. City Attorney Harper stated that a LMD is a means of constructing 
improvements and maintaining a portion of the public right-of-way.   
 
M/S Azevedo/Bash to approve the amendment to the Horsetown USA Sign 
Program to include all signs, where appropriate, either developed and/or 
constructed by the City within the public right-of-way, and include the Horsetown 
USA Logo and/or the City Seal, within the discretion of the City.  The motion was 
carried by the following roll call vote:   
 
AYES: AZEVEDO, BASH, HANNA 
NOES: SULLIVAN 
ABSENT: MILLER 
ABSTAIN: NONE 
 



City Council/CRA Minutes 
Page 6  
August 4, 2010 
 
Council Member Sullivan received confirmation, under discussion, that the approval of 
this would affect only future signs and has nothing to do with the signs in the Norco hills.   
 
City Manager Groves noted that there is no funding included in this item to make any 
changes and this amendment only extends the existing program. 
 
5.  CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING: 
 

A. City-Initiated Proposal to Add Chapter 18.58 to the Norco Municipal Code 
Entitled “Historic Preservation Overlay Zone”. (Zone Code Amendment 
2010-02)  

 
 The purpose of the proposed Historic Preservation Overlay Zone is to 

allow the City to protect the historic integrity of areas having a significant 
concentration of historic resources.  The Planning Commission reviewed 
the proposed zone code amendment at its meeting on July 14, 2010 and 
recommended approval after some modifications to the proposed text. 
The Historic Preservation Commission also recommended approval at its 
meeting held on May 13, 2010. 

 
 Recommended Action:  Adopt Ordinance No. ____ for first reading. 

(Planning Director) 
 
Planning Director Steve King, along with City of Norco Cultural Resources 
Consultant Bill Wilkman presented the City Council public hearing item and noted that 
the Norconian is the primary focus.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hanna OPENED the public hearing, indicating that proper 
notification had been made and asked for the appearance of those wishing to 
speak.  
 
Margaret Harris.  Ms. Harris commented on the economic impacts that would result in 
the closing of the Navy Base and the Prison. 
 
Jeanine Adams.  Ms. Adams commented on the importance of the preservation of the 
Norconian and the positive financial impacts that would result.  
 
Su Bacon.  Ms. Bacon stated that she has been Involved in historic preservation for 
over 20 years and noted that this overlay will not hurt the City’s real estate but the City 
will only gain from it. 
 
Council Member Bash clarified that this is not an endeavor to close the Navy Base nor 
the Prison.  He added that the Prison does not use all Norco vendors as they are 
required to go through a public process.  He further encouraged the Council to adopt 
this ordinance. 



City Council/CRA Minutes 
Page 7  
August 4, 2010 
 
 
Council Member Azevedo stated that she supports the ordinance and commented on 
the importance of the preservation and redevelopment of the Norconian.  She further 
noted that the result would be an economic benefit to the City.  She stated that she is 
concerned about any future modifications made to the Overlay Zone by staff and added 
that there should be a process.   
 
Council Member Sullivan stated that he has concerns with the Historic Preservation 
Overlay Zone in the case where a development standard would be in conflict with the 
design standards listed in the ordinance. He further noted that he understood that 
passing this is would provide an opportunity to come back later and change it to a 
historical district.  City Manager Groves stated that the action at this time is just to 
create a process.  Mr. Wilkman noted that the ordinance section referred to is 18.58.06, 
which indicates the permitted uses and development standards – permissive language 
and not mandatory.  
 
City Attorney Harper noted that the only revision that staff would be able to make is to 
the survey, which is technical in nature only (referenced Section 18.58.10.(5) b.). He 
further stated that the Council is not approving the placement of an overlay district, only 
adopting an ordinance that would create the next tool if the Council wants to move 
forward. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hanna CLOSED the public hearing.  
 
M/S Bash/Azevedo to adopt Ordinance No. 923 for first reading.  The motion was 
carried by the following roll call vote:   
 
AYES: AZEVEDO, BASH, HANNA, SULLIVAN 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: MILLER 
ABSTAIN: NONE 
 
6. CITY COUNCIL ITEMS FOR ACTION: 
 
 A. Resolution in Support for Arizona’s Adoption of Senate Bill 1070 
 
  The Members of the City Council unanimously recommended that a 

resolution be adopted in support of Arizona SB 1070.  The proposed 
resolution resolves that the City Council stands with the people of Arizona 
and supports the right of the State of Arizona to create laws to protect and 
defend its citizens and our country. 

  
  Recommended Action:  Adopt Resolution No. 2010-___, expressing 

support for Arizona’s adoption of Senate Bill 1070. (City Manager) 
  
City Manager Groves presented the City Council item stating that this is a resolution in 
support of Senate Bill 1070.   
 



City Council/CRA Minutes 
Page 8  
August 4, 2010 
 
Speakers in Support of Norco Expressing Support for Senate Bill 1070 
Jeane Ensley-Rossiter 
Ted Wegener 
Ed Dixon 
Ernie White  
Robin Hvidston 
Kay O’Mara 
Wendie Stevens-Rodriquez 
Ronald Lohan 
Tim Scott 
Julie Waltz 
Cindy Chafiar 
Su Bacon 
Vern Showalter 
Bill Kezar 
 
Speaker Against Norco Expressing Support for Senate Bill 1070 
Karen Leonard 
 
Council Member Sullivan stated that he is excited to have so many people in 
attendance and thanked everyone, as he was the one that recommended that this be 
placed on the agenda.   
 
Council Member Azevedo stated that she supports this, but is concerned that the 
Council is ultimately responsible for the decision, as it is unknown what the ramifications 
may be.  She added that it would help her to have a count of the Norconians that 
support this.   
 
Council Member Bash stated that the impacts of this are important and further noted 
that he is personally in favor of this. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hanna stated that he is tired of government not doing its work and 
stated that it is time that we stand up and take our Country back.   
 
M/S Sullivan/Azevedo to adopt Resolution No. 2010-50, expressing support for 
Arizona’s adoption of Senate Bill 1070.  The motion was carried by the following 
roll call vote:   
 
AYES: AZEVEDO, BASH, HANNA, SULLIVAN 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: MILLER 
ABSTAIN: NONE 
 



City Council/CRA Minutes 
Page 9  
August 4, 2010 
 
Council Member Sullivan commented, under discussion, that Mayor Pro Tem Hanna 
will be attending the League of California Cities Conference in September and would 
like to see him carry this excitement and support over to all of the cities in California. 
 

B. Discussion of a Potential Ordinance Stipulating Contractor Requirements 
Related to the Use of E-Verify 

 
  At its July 21, 2010 meeting, the City Council directed staff to agendize a 

discussion item on the E-Verify Program.  The City of Norco currently uses 
E-Verify for all new employees hired by the City.  The Council request is to 
discuss making the use of E-Verify a requirement for all contractors that 
provide products or services to the City. 

 
  Recommended Action: That the Council Members reach consensus 

regarding bringing forward an ordinance stipulating contracting 
requirements related to the use of E-Verify. (City Manager) 

 
City Manager Groves presented the City Council item stating that this item is being 
brought back following the Council’s recommendation. She further noted that if the 
Council directs staff to bring back a draft ordinance, a public hearing will be noticed prior 
to the meeting. 
 
Council Member Sullivan stated that Congressman Ken Calvert introduced legislation 
to create the program more than a decade ago.  He noted that we need to start doing 
this on the local level and this is a great start in finding out who has the jobs and who 
does not. 
 
Speakers in Support of E-Verify 
Ted Wegener 
Michael Coultos 
Shellie Milne 
Karen Leonard 
Carol Baretto 
Linda Dixon 
Robin Hvidston 
Ed Dixon 
Kay O’Mara.  Ms. O’Mara presented a petition that was signed in support of the City of 
Norco using E-Verify 
Wendie Stevens-Rodriquez 
Bill Kezar 
Vern Showalter 
Julie Waltz 
 
Council Member Sullivan stated that it is time the City does this and agrees with the 
suggestions made by Ms. O’Mara, but is not sure that we can do all she requests. He 
further noted that he would like to some day see the entire list included on that petition 
be included in two (2) proposed ordinances.  
 



City Council/CRA Minutes 
Page 10  
August 4, 2010 
 
Council Member Azevedo stated that she supports E-Verify but questions how far the 
City should go. She further stated that she would need to know how it would be 
implemented and enforced. 
 
Council Member Bash stated that he owns a couple of family businesses and there is 
a part of him that does not like big government, but noted that he uses E-Verify.  He 
added that he is nervous about sending volunteers or employees into businesses to 
verify records and noted that this is also time consuming.  He further noted that he does 
not have a problem passing this but he would need to realize the City’s obligation and 
how it would be enforced. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hanna stated that he is in favor of this and noted that sub-contractors 
should be included in the ordinance. 
 
City Manager Groves stated that the motion should contain how comprehensive the 
ordinance should be written. 
 
Council Member Azevedo stated concerns regarding the implementation of this and 
what the financial impacts would be.  
 
City Manager Groves stated that it would be the first meeting in September, at the 
earliest, before we could bring back a draft ordinance to include all of the information 
that would realistically be implemented.   
 
M/S Sullivan/Bash to bring back an ordinance that includes E-Verify requirements 
for all City employees, City sub-contractors and all City businesses and their sub-
contractors. The motion was carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES: AZEVEDO, BASH, HANNA, SULLIVAN 
NOES: NONE 
ABSENT: MILLER 
ABSTAIN: NONE 
 
7. PUBLIC COMMENTS OR QUESTIONS: 
 
Linda Dixon.  Ms. Dixon presented to the Council and Staff the Norco Fair Program 
and expressed appreciation for the City’s support.   
 
Ben Comrado.  Mr. Comrado commented on the situation at the City of Bell regarding 
the high salaries and noted that the City of Norco was mentioned as having a 
relationship with the City of Bell.  City Manager Groves responded that the City of Norco 
is in the same California Public Employee Retirement risk pool as the City of Bell, and 
that is the only relationship.  
 
Ken Bleck.  Mr. Bleck commented on the unsafe condition of the narrow traffic lanes on 
Bluff between Vine and River Road.  He also commented on the high weeds growing on 
the property that the City’s water wells are located on. 



City Council/CRA Minutes 
Page 11  
August 4, 2010 
 
 
Robert Leonard.  Mr. Leonard thanked City Manager Groves, Public Works Director 
Thompson, and Senior Engineer Askew for their assistance with a situation that he was 
dealing with.   
 
Pam Smith.  Ms. Smith stated that the Federated Republican Women provided all 5th 
graders in the Corona Norco Unified School District with a pocket size US Constitution.  
She also noted that their Chili Cook Off will be held on Saturday, August 14th.   
 
Robert Swindell.  Mr. Swindell commented on his concerns regarding the City’s 
financial stability and his concern over its leadership.  Mr. Swindell submitted his 
comments for the record.  
 
Julie Waltz.  Ms. Waltz commented on the death reported at a Group Home on Broken 
Arrow and noted that she is concerned and would like to see the house investigated.  
Ms. Waltz submitted information regarding who to contact at the State of California 
Department of Developmental Services, and specifically mentioned Director Terri 
Delgadillo.  She also suggested that the City’s Police reports be sent to them.  
 
Bobbie Pope.  Ms. Pope stated that the purpose of the Army Corps of Engineer’s 
project is to eradicate the arundo and they are working with the City to help keep the 
trails.  She added that with the restoration, there will be new plants added and that 
ongoing meetings with the Corps will be held. 
 
Greg Newton.  Mr. Newton commented on how well the Home and Land Real Estate 
office remodel and façade turned out and complemented staff and Council on their 
work.   
 
Michael Harris.  Mr. Harris commented on his previous request for the City to develop 
a 5-year financial plan and noted that it does not seem to be available.  He added that 
he has not seen any long-term financials for the City and questioned if the City is out of 
the woods and in the black.  Mr. Harris requested that the Council bring the residents 
up-to-date regarding progress on the budget and put a “real” strategic plan together.   
 
Kaye O’Mara.  Ms. O’Mara complemented Council and staff on the upcoming Farmer’s 
Market and commended the City for its sponsorship of the National Day of the American 
Cowboy events.   
 
Cindy Chafian.  Ms. Chafian stated that you can be diverse with originality.   
 
Elizabeth Swindell.  Ms. Swindell stated that because of poor decisions, the City is 
broke.  She further added that she wants to see good decisions made and not 
irresponsible spending and recommends using outside financial advisors.  Ms. Swindell 
commented that the City is in the midst of a financial meltdown.   
 
Donna Maxey.  Ms. Maxey noted that she is an Act for America member and is working 
to combat Islam in America. She further encourages attendance at Calvary Chapel in 
Chino Hills on September 11 regarding this subject. 
 



City Council/CRA Minutes 
Page 12  
August 4, 2010 
 
Pat Overstreet.  Ms. Overstreet stated that the National Day of the American Cowboy 
was fantastic.  She also stated that she believes that anyone refusing to state their last 
name should not be allowed to speak.  Ms. Overstreet distributed and commented on a 
picture of an accessory building that started on fire and stored explosive ammunition.  
Ms. Overstreet also stated that Norco is liberal and tolerable with property rights and 
encouraged support of the proposed accessory building ordinance.   
 
Doug Roberts.  Mr. Roberts applauded the City for its pro-active marketing.  He also 
stated concerns regarding the River trails and added that the arundo should be 
removed in a safe manner and the City should take a pro-active stand on this.   
 
John Box.  Mr. Box stated and clarified that he moved to Norco for the rural lifestyle 
and all the things already in tact are what they are trying to protect.  He noted that 
money is the issue and it should be managed correctly so that the lifestyle can be 
protected.  Mr. Box stated that he does not think the Council has been upfront with them 
regarding the accessory building ordinance and noted concerns regarding the residents 
living in the “flat lands” and if they are in agreement with it. 
 
Jeanine Adams.  Ms. Adams commented on the statements made regarding property 
rights and noted that she would like to see persons that complain volunteer and 
participate in City activities. 
 
8. OTHER MATTERS – COUNCIL: 
 
Council Member Bash: 

 Stated that a future meeting to discuss the River trails is going to be held. 
 Commented on the increased business to Bob’s Big Boy with the “Cowboy Bob” 

present. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hanna: 

 Stated that the City of Canyon Lake is a new member of the Northwest Mosquito 
Abatement District. 

 Commented on the National Day of the American Cowboy noting that it was a 
great event and thanked everyone that volunteered.  He added that this was one 
event that the City put on that ended up in the black.  

 
9.  OTHER MATTERS – STAFF:  Nothing to report. 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business to come before the City 

Council, Mayor Pro Tem Hanna adjourned the meeting at 10:41 p.m. 
 
 

________________________________ 
BRENDA K. JACOBS 

CITY CLERK 
 
/bj-76262 
 


